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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.
  

 2                 Now is the time set for the prefiling
  

 3   conference for the Cactus Flower Project.
  

 4                 Let's start by taking appearance of the
  

 5   applicant, Mr. Acken.
  

 6                 MR. ACKEN:  Good afternoon, Chairman.  Bert
  

 7   Acken on behalf of the applicant Cypress Creek Renewables
  

 8   LLC.  I've got several members of the team here, and I'd
  

 9   like them to introduce themselves starting with Sohini.
  

10                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  Hi.  I'm Sohini
  

11   Hathiramani at Cypress Creek as the project developer for
  

12   Cactus Flower.
  

13                 MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.
  

14                 And Jennifer.
  

15                 MS. HYRE:  Hi.  Jennifer Hyre with Cypress
  

16   Creek, environmental lead for the Cactus Flower project.
  

17                 MR. ACKEN:  Samuel.
  

18                 MR. DAVIS:  Hello.  I'm Samuel Davis with
  

19   Cypress Creek.  I'm manager of external affairs for the
  

20   southwest.  Thank you.
  

21                 MR. ACKEN:  Brian.
  

22                 MR. LINDENLAUB:  Brian Lindenlaub of
  

23   WestLand Resources consulting for the applicant.
  

24                 MR. ACKEN:  And last but not least, Tess.
  

25                 MS. WAGNER:  Hi.  I'm Tess Wagner also with
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 1   WestLand Resources providing support for Cypress Creek.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Spell Cypress for me.
  

 3                 MR. ACKEN:  C-Y-P-R-E-S-S.  Took me a
  

 4   couple tries.  I'm like which Cypress is it?
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you.  Let's see, we
  

 6   have four exhibits for the prefiling conference.
  

 7                 MR. ACKEN:  That's right.  So number 1 is
  

 8   Prefiling Figure 1.  That's the black-and-white map that
  

 9   we propose being Exhibit A to the notice of hearing.
  

10                 Number 2 is an overview aerial map that
  

11   also shows proposed sign locations.
  

12                 Number 3 is a land ownership map, again,
  

13   showing proposed sign locations.
  

14                 And then 4 is our proposed notice of
  

15   hearing.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you.  Those are
  

17   admitted.
  

18                 (Prefiling Exhibits 1 through 4 were
  

19   admitted.)
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And the draft
  

21   notice of hearing is Word, so that's ready to go.
  

22                 What were you doing the public -- what will
  

23   you be doing the publication in for the notice of
  

24   hearing?
  

25                 MR. ACKEN:  So we are going to publish in
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 1   the Casa Grande Dispatch.  That's our -- that is our
  

 2   goal, and I say it's a goal because they do have some
  

 3   limitations on publication.  I think they publish three
  

 4   times a week.  And so in order for us to be able to meet
  

 5   the two publications in 10 days, it's going to be a
  

 6   little tight.  So let's say we file on this Friday as
  

 7   we're scheduled to do, we would have to have that notice
  

 8   of hearing final in hand by the morning of the 28th in
  

 9   order to meet two publications in Casa Grande Dispatch.
  

10   So we can use the Republic as a backup if we need it, but
  

11   just wanted to outline that for you.  If we can do in it
  

12   Casa Grande Dispatch, that would be great.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So your file date is
  

14   going to be, what, the 25th?
  

15                 MR. ACKEN:  24th is Friday.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  October 24, this Friday.
  

17   Okay.  So you need it by, what, that Monday, then, I
  

18   guess; right?
  

19                 MR. ACKEN:  Yeah.  End of day Monday.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  We'll see if we can
  

21   get it ready by Friday.
  

22                 I think the 28th we're in another hearing.
  

23                 MR. ACKEN:  Yeah.  Might make it a little
  

24   more difficult.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Okay.  And then
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 1   so how many -- you have the maps.  How many signs do you
  

 2   have --
  

 3                 MR. ACKEN:  We proposed -- I'm sorry.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Go ahead.
  

 5                 MR. ACKEN:  We proposed three sign
  

 6   locations.  This is a nine-mile -- just under nine-mile
  

 7   gen-tie.  We proposed three sign locations:  one kind of
  

 8   close to the generation facility, one about halfway along
  

 9   the route, and then the other towards the other end of
  

10   the route.
  

11                 All of the proposed sign locations are on
  

12   state trust land, and the team has coordinated with State
  

13   Land and has authorization to post signs -- obviously not
  

14   permanent ones, but to post temporary signs in those
  

15   proposed locations.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And I see the affected
  

17   jurisdictions are Pinal County and Arizona State Land
  

18   Department?
  

19                 MR. ACKEN:  That's correct.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So they get notice to them
  

21   provided to them by the statute.
  

22                 And you've done -- you'll do social media
  

23   outreach for the notice of hearing in addition to what
  

24   you've done for the project already?
  

25                 MR. ACKEN:  Social media outreach, we have
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 1   done some.  This is an area that is similar to my project
  

 2   that you're going to be seeing next week that we talked
  

 3   about recently where there's -- I think less than 60
  

 4   owners within two miles of the project, and so we've been
  

 5   using direct mailers.  And so that's been the primary
  

 6   outreach method.
  

 7                 The project has a website.  Held an open
  

 8   house.  We'll be prepared to talk about that at the
  

 9   hearing.
  

10                 But as far as social media campaign, I
  

11   don't think that we're proposing to do that just given
  

12   the rural, sparse nature of surrounding property owners.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  There's about 60 total
  

14   landowners?
  

15                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And, you know, if I'm --
  

16   if I'm mistaken, I'll ask my team to speak up, but I
  

17   think it's less than 60.
  

18                 Seeing heads nod, which you can't get on
  

19   the transcript.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, I'm not hearing any
  

21   objection to that characterization of approximately 60
  

22   total landowners in the study area.
  

23                 So this we'll be doing the hearing at the
  

24   Commission; correct?
  

25                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And thank you.  And Tess
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 1   and others on this call really tried hard.  You know, we
  

 2   got that last-minute curve ball from the location we
  

 3   thought we had secured.  And we cast a wide net
  

 4   throughout Pinal County down to Marana, even north
  

 5   Tucson, and just were unable to find a suitable location
  

 6   on the kind of time crunch.
  

 7                 So we're really grateful to be able to hold
  

 8   it the Commission.  We think this one is well suited to
  

 9   hold at the Commission.  It's not much further from the
  

10   Commission than some of the venues we were looking at,
  

11   quite honestly.  And because it's so remote, we don't
  

12   anticipate much public interest, if at all.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we'll be
  

14   doing -- we'll start at 10 a.m. on the 8th and then
  

15   nine a.m. on the 9th and then, if necessary, 10 a.m. on
  

16   the 10th.
  

17                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And you'll see the
  

18   proposed notice of hearing -- I didn't include the 10th.
  

19   It just has that catch-all additional hearing days will
  

20   be noticed.  So, obviously, it's your decision on whether
  

21   you want to specify that as an option.  But just wanted
  

22   to note that for you.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, I think -- and you'll
  

24   have lodging for the out-of-town committee members near
  

25   the Commission?
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 1                 MR. ACKEN:  We will.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I guess the driving
  

 3   factor of whether we go to two or three days is whether
  

 4   or not we do a tour.  So have a plan for a tour.  The
  

 5   normal course would be the Tuesday morning at nine, meet
  

 6   up, and then rally from there.  I think it's about, what,
  

 7   an hour from the Commission to where the tour would be?
  

 8                 MR. ACKEN:  Hour-15 to hour-30.  So assume
  

 9   about two and a half, three hours of drive time and an
  

10   hour driving around.  So it's about a four-hour tour.
  

11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We'll see if there's an
  

12   appetite for one of those, but it's best to be prepared.
  

13                 MR. ACKEN:  We will.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

15                 MR. ACKEN:  And, again, it's one of those
  

16   where we're happy to do it if it gives the committee --
  

17   particularly if it gives the committee more comfort since
  

18   they're not holding the hearing in the vicinity of the
  

19   project.  So, yes, we'll be prepared and have a good
  

20   in-person tour if that's the committee's election.  And,
  

21   of course, we'll also have the virtual tour and all the
  

22   other accoutrements you'd expect to see in a hearing.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I think it's going to be --
  

24   what typically shapes that decision is how close any
  

25   residential structures are to the project and if there's
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 1   been any public objection to the project.  I think
  

 2   without those two things, a tour seems less likely.
  

 3                 So we've got the prehearing conference set
  

 4   for December 2 at three p.m.
  

 5                 There's no other litigation or disputes
  

 6   regarding this project; correct?
  

 7                 MR. ACKEN:  Not to my knowledge.
  

 8                 Sohini?
  

 9                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  No.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  You said the
  

11   application will be filed this Friday the 24th.
  

12                 I'm going to do the normal thing, issue the
  

13   procedural order, agenda, Staff letter.  And you'll need
  

14   that notice of hearing ready to go you said by the 28th?
  

15   I think --
  

16                 MR. ACKEN:  The morning of the 28th in
  

17   order to get it published twice in Casa Grande Dispatch.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Well, I think I'm
  

19   just going to shoot to try to get it out this Friday when
  

20   you file.
  

21                 MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.
  

22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Then I'll be between
  

23   hearings, so that's probably the best way to do it.
  

24                 So we'll do a public comment at the
  

25   Commission at 5:30, standard time.
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 1                 You're not anticipating much of that, huh?
  

 2                 MR. ACKEN:  We are not.  Just for flavor,
  

 3   the open house, I think there were two or three
  

 4   attendees, including a couple landowners who are
  

 5   interested in potentially selling property.  And so, no,
  

 6   we're not anticipating public interest in this project --
  

 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

 8                 MR. ACKEN:  -- location.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What is the permit status
  

10   of the project?
  

11                 MR. ACKEN:  So both county entitlements and
  

12   State Land processes are underway.
  

13                 Sohini, do you want to speak to that just a
  

14   little more detail for now?
  

15                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  Yes.  So we've got our
  

16   Major Comprehensive Plan Amendments that was completed in
  

17   October of 2024.  And we're currently in the process of
  

18   the rezoning and POD application.  We're scheduled
  

19   actually to go to the board of supervisors on
  

20   December 3 --
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And that's for the
  

22   solar-plus-storage project, not the gen-tie line;
  

23   correct?
  

24                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  Yes, not the gen-tie
  

25   line.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  The gen-tie line is a
  

 2   permitted use under the current Pinal County zoning;
  

 3   correct?
  

 4                 MS. HATHIRAMANI:  Uh-huh.
  

 5                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  

 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So since we're
  

 7   doing it at the Commission, you won't have Peaks Audio, I
  

 8   assume?
  

 9                 MR. ACKEN:  That's my assumption.  I'll
  

10   need to coordinate with Mike sooner rather than later.
  

11                 We will be having tablets still available
  

12   for the committee members, but I'm assuming we'll work
  

13   with Mike and his team on the AV piece.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Great.  Yeah, I
  

15   think if you can have tablets, that's probably better and
  

16   less cumbersome than 11 binders.  You only have to have
  

17   two hard copies, one for me, one for the court reporter.
  

18   I think it's probably better to have tablets on there for
  

19   everybody else.
  

20                 So this project, I'm assuming the amount of
  

21   filing fees is $1,000?
  

22                 MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that's correct.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The Commission is
  

24   obligated by statute to pay the cost of reporting and
  

25   transcribing any application hearing as well as the
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 1   actual and necessary expenses incurred by the committee
  

 2   members in connection with their participation in
  

 3   committee meetings from the filing fee.  Costs and fees
  

 4   exceeding the amount of the applicant's fee may, with the
  

 5   applicant's consent, be incurred by the committee and
  

 6   charged to the applicant.  Does the applicant consent to
  

 7   pay the commission of those costs in excess of the filing
  

 8   fee?
  

 9                 MR. ACKEN:  It does.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So we'll still do the
  

11   three-day turnaround for the transcripts after the
  

12   hearing.
  

13                 Is there anything else we need to cover?
  

14                 MR. ACKEN:  I don't see anything else on my
  

15   list.  I guess I would ask at this time my team to speak
  

16   up if I've misstated or missed anything.
  

17                 Hearing none.  Thank you.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I'm seeing shaking heads.
  

19                 Anything else, Tod, that we need covered?
  

20                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And, Jennifer,
  

22   you've got everything you need?
  

23                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Yes.  Thank you.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you very much.  I
  

25   will get to your -- your notice of hearing to you this
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 1   Friday.  If you file it, you'll be ready to go to get the
  

 2   publications done timely in the Casa Grande Dispatch.
  

 3                 MR. ACKEN:  Thank you so much.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you.  With that, we
  

 5   are adjourned.
  

 6                 (Proceedings concluded at 3:16 p.m.)
  

 7
  

 8
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA       )
                          )

 2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )
  

 3        BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

 4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

 5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
   to print under my direction.

 6
        I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

 7   parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
   outcome hereof.

 8
        I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

 9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).

10
        Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, October 31, 2025.

11
  

12
  

13
  

14              ___________________________________
                       JENNIFER HONN, RPR

15                   Arizona Certified Reporter
                           No. 50885

16
  

17
  

18        I CERTIFY that GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC, has
   complied with the ethical obligations set forth in

19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23               __________________________________
                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

24                    Arizona Registered Firm
                           No. R1035
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